MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD IN COMMITTEE ROOMS 2/3, CIVIC OFFICES ANGEL STREET BRIDGEND CF31 4WB ON TUESDAY, 19 JULY 2016 AT 10.00 AM

Present

Councillor D Sage - Chairperson

N Clarke PA Davies N Farr EM Hughes
PN John RC Jones JE Lewis LC Morgan
M Thomas E Venables

Officers:

Susan Cooper Corporate Director - Social Services & Wellbeing
Sarah Daniel Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Jackie Davies Head of Adult Social Care

Jackie Davies Head of Adult Social Care
Gary Jones Head of Democratic Services

Andrew Rees Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees

44. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M Butcher.

45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following Declaration of Interest was made:

Councillor N Farr – declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 - Social Services' Functions in Relation to Part 11 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 Update as she is employed as a Social Worker in adult social care in Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council.

46. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RESOLVED:

- (1) That the minutes of the meeting of the Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 13 January 2016 be approved as a true and accurate record and that it be ascertained whether the information requested on the Communities First programme had been sent to the Committee.
- (2) That the minutes of the meeting of the Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 6 April 2016 be approved as a true and accurate record subject to minute 37 being amended to reflect that Councillor P Davies chaired the meeting from item 5 onwards.

47. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2016-17

The Scrutiny Officer presented a report outlining the suggested topics for consideration in the development of the Committee's Forward Work Programme for 2016-17. A draft list of items for possible inclusion on the Forward Work Programme had been developed arising from the workshop held in April 2016. There was also the potential for Collaborative Committees to deal with cross-cutting issues such as Supporting People or Child and Adolescent Mental Health.

The Scrutiny Officer informed the Committee that three items required prioritisation, namely, Day Services for People with Learning Disabilities; the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and Meals at Home which had been postponed as the consultation process had not been completed. She stated that the Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing had agreed to assist the Committee with suggested topics for the Forward Work Programme where there were current gaps in the programme.

The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee of potential items it may wish to consider for inclusion in the Forward Work Programme.

The Scrutiny Officer informed the Committee that she would send a list of potential items for inclusion on the Forward Work Programme to the Committee.

Conclusion

The Committee discussed and agreed a draft provisional Forward Work Programme and that draft the list of items (Appendix B) be re-circulated to the Committee in order that it be given further consideration at the next meeting.

Members agreed to develop the detail for all Annual FWP Items before the next meeting of the Committee. It was agreed that any items for consideration should be focused and provide an opportunity to add value and improve the outcomes for residents of the County Borough.

Members agreed to consider a wider range of invitees to attend future meeting of the committee. This could include service users who were able to ensure comprehensive and balance consideration of the item.

48. <u>SOCIAL SERVICES' FUNCTIONS IN RELATION TO PART 11 OF THE SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING (WALES) ACT 2014 UPDATE</u>

The Scrutiny Officer introduced an update report on the local authority's responsibilities in respect of the Secure Estate, following the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in 2016. She informed the Committee that approval would be sought from Cabinet to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with HMP Parc Prison for the Provision of care and Support for prisoners in the Secure Estate and agreement to sign up to an Information Sharing Protocol. Cabinet would also be requested to waive the requirement to seek competitive tenders for the provision of care and support.

The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act had introduced significant responsibilities on local authorities for addressing and meeting the care and support needs of all adults and children in prison.

The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the Council has a training and resettlement prison accommodating 1723 males upwards of 18 years within its

boundary and which the Council is responsible for meeting the care and support needs. Work was ongoing to determine the actual number of people eligible for support from the Council and over the past year the Directorate has been working in partnership with agencies on how best to meet its obligations towards the secure estate. A Code of Practice has been issued by the Welsh Government which sets out the requirements on local authorities in the exercise of their social services functions in respect of those held in custody, bail accommodation and on release.

The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that she represents the Council on a National Steering Group convened to discuss the implementation of responsibilities of the four local authorities in Wales that have prisons within their boundaries. Regional collaboration arrangements would be established to support care and support needs and to reduce the risk of offending behaviour. She also informed the Committee of the work undertaken for the care and support of adults in that a Local Implementation Group had been established to develop a local implementation plan. Two senior social work practitioners and a senior occupational therapist had been appointed on temporary 9 month contracts to carry out assessments and develop managed care and support plans for those within the secure estate. A mapping exercise has been carried out which indicated that there were 40 people waiting for integrated assessment and 40 requiring assessment for aids and equipment to support their daily living. It was intended, subject to Cabinet approval, to enter into a short term agreement with G4S Medical Services Limited for a pilot scheme for up to 9 months. A draft Information Sharing Protocol and Memorandum of Understanding have been developed for the delivery of care in this environment and to enable the delivery of effective care and support.

The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the Council has received funding of £236,774 for 2016/17 which will reduce thereafter to £217,448 on an ongoing basis.

The Committee questioned as to when would there be a better understanding of the numbers of people that will require support from the Council. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that several mapping exercises had been carried out to establish how many people would need care and support and that some referrals had been received which were not appropriate. She stated there would be an evaluation process carried out between October and December to establish whether the mix and numbers of staff supporting their care needs are appropriate. To date, there had been 27 referrals.

The Committee questioned whether there would be a managed release of prisoners and is there any ongoing preventative work with Western Bay to prevent re-offending. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the release of prisoners was not the responsibility of the Council. She stated that this Council is actively involved at the point prisoners are released but the prisoner on release would become the responsibility of the local authority where they return to live. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that this Council has responsibility for prisoners care and social care needs for the time they are in Parc Prison. She stated that it was the responsibility of this Council to make an assessment of prisoners' care needs and then commission that care from the provider who also formerly provided that service prior to the enactment of the legislation. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that the percentage of prisoners at Parc Prison who live in Bridgend is relatively small which the authority would have responsibility for when they are released.

The Committee questioned whether each prisoner is assessed. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the prison has responsibility for its own assessment process, but the prison would make a referral to this Council if the prisoner

had ongoing care and support needs. She stated that the prison operates a very strict and controlled environment where it was locked down at certain times of the day and social work staff would not have access to prisoners at that time.

The Committee questioned whether the grant funding provided to the Council would cover the provision of equipment such as a hoist for an individual's needs and what would happen to that equipment when the prisoner was released. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that small items of equipment would be retained by the Council in its store, whereas larger items of equipment such as a hoist would remain with the prison. She stated that the Council has a responsibility to provide items of equipment to meet the care needs of prisoners; however the delivery of equipment into the prison gives rise to issues of security. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that small aids can be stored and moved around as the authority required, however the storage of large pieces of equipment would need to be the subject of negotiation with the prison. The process was one of evolution as the scheme progressed. The Committee questioned what would happen to equipment which was based at the prison following the release of the prisoner who used that equipment. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that equipment would remain at the prison but this Council would discuss with the prisoner's needs with the authority the prisoner was returning to.

The Committee questioned the duration that staff would be employed in the programme and whether the level of grant funding was sufficient. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that staffing appointments had been made for the duration of 9 months and it was envisaged that the whole of the grant funding would be utilised.

In response to a question from the Committee, the Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the 2 social work practitioners and a senior occupational therapist would be based in the health block at the prison. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that Parc Prison is a training and resettlement facility but is also a private prison and is at present the largest prison in Wales. She stated that the requirement of the Act to provide care and support to the Secure Estate has been a significant piece of work for the Directorate and was evolving continually and the Directorate had to deal with the care needs of a prisoner who is currently in hospital. The Cabinet Member Adult Social Care that the Council had been awarded additional funding at the current level for this year only and that the funding beyond that would decrease. He stated that as this is a new responsibility for the Council it was too early to ascertain whether the level of funding received from the Welsh Government was sufficient. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that the Council has responsibility for the social care needs of prisoners during their time in Parc Prison. She stated that concerns regarding the adequacy of funding would be fed into the National Steering Group.

The Committee questioned what would happen should demand from prisoners be greater than the funding available to the Council, particularly as the Welsh Government had stated that the implementation of the Act would be cost neutral. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that local authorities with prisons had been vocal with the Welsh Government in the allocation of funding. She stated that the pilot which was continually evolving would run for 9 months and the outcome of the pilot would be fed back to the Welsh Government. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that funding was top sliced and each authority with a prison received the top sliced funding. She also informed the Committee that the authority has some responsibilities for children, in that Parc Prison has a youth wing housing 50 children, where 1 social worker was in situ. She stated that the authority was already working with Parc Prison on the Invisible Walls project which works with

families affected by parental imprisonment by working to develop relationships with prisoners and their families. In response to a question from the Committee, the Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing stated that she would provide the Committee with details of the ages of the children in the youth wing of Parc Prison.

The Committee questioned how the team could undertake assessments of prisoners when the prison is in lock down. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that the health team would do hands on care during prison lock down.

The Committee questioned the nature of the challenging ICT issues. The Head of Adult Social Care commented that there was a need to ensure the security of the use of the Council's ICT system within a prison environment and the Council's and prison ICT Department's had worked together to resolve security issues to enable an Information Sharing Protocol to be signed and the establishment of governance arrangements.

The Head of Democratic Services requested clarification as to when the pilot would end and when officers would have a better understanding of whether there was sufficient funding. The Head of Adult Social Care informed the Committee that an evaluation of the programme will take place at the end of 6 months and by mid-November it was anticipated that the options going forward for delivering the service and resources required would be known. The Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing informed the Committee that the staff engaged in the programme would have a role in providing feedback into the evaluation process. She stated that as there is a different culture of working within the prison and for that reason the team of officers working as part of the programme are also part of the wider team in Social Services.

Conclusions

The Committee requested that this item is brought back to this Scrutiny Committee at their November meeting so that Officers will be better placed to provide more information to Members. The Committee requested that the following information be included in the report:

- What are the expected waiting times for an assessment and for a person to receive specialist equipment within the Secure Estate
- Further information on the costs associated with providing care and support. An example of costs associated with providing specialist equipment e.g hoists
- Is there a contingency plan for the funding of the care within the Secure Estate? What if the current funding is not enough, where will the shortfall come from?
- What are the outcomes from the Pilot? What lessons have been learned?
- Further information on the numbers of people in the Secure Estate that require care and equipment from BCBC and the age range of those that require care.
- Percentage of people within the Secure Estate that require care that were not previously domiciled in Bridgend County Borough.
- Information on the payment and ownership of specialist care equipment.
 What happens to the equipment when a person is released, especially customized equipment, can it be "sold" onto another Authority for example?

49. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE

The Scrutiny Officer presented a report which detailed the items to be considered at the next meeting of the Committee and sought confirmation of the information and invitees required.

Conclusion

The Committee noted the items to be considered at its meeting on 13 September 2016.

50. CORPORATE PARENTING CHAMPION NOMINATION REPORT

<u>RESOLVED</u>: That Councillor N Farr be nominated as its Corporate Parenting Champion to represent the Committee at meetings of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting.

51. <u>URGENT ITEMS</u>

There were no urgent items.

The meeting closed at 11.50 am